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PARKS AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Council Chamber
June 16, 2005

CONVENE: 1 :32 p.m.
PRESENT:

Councilmember Jo Anne Johnson, Chair
Councilmember Charmaine Tavares, Vice-Chair
Councilmember Michelle Anderson, Member

EXCUSED:

Councilmember Robert Carroll, Member
Councilmember Danny A. Mateo, Member

STAFF:

David Raatz, Legislative Attorney
Shelly Espeleta, Legislative Analyst
Pauline Martins, Committee Secretary
Kelly McGinnis, Executive Assistant to Councilmember Pontanilla

ADMIN.:

John D. Kim, Deputy Corporation Counsel, Department of the Corporation
Counsel
John Buck, Deputy Director, Department of Parks and Recreation
Patrick Matsui, Chief of Planning and Development, Department of Parks and
Recreation
Robert Straub, Special Events Coordinator, Department of Parks and Recreation
Kalbert Young, Director, Department of Finance (Item No. 10)

OTHERS:

Karlynn Kawahara, Munekiyo & Hiraga, Inc.
Michael Munekiyo, Munekiyo & Hiraga, Inc.
Mark Roy, Munekiyo & Hiraga, Inc.
DavidDorn
Plus (6) other people

CHAIR JOHNSON: The Parks and Economic Development Committee meeting of June 16,2005 will come to
order. We have present today, Committee Members Michelle Anderson and also Councilmember
Tavares. Excused are Councilmember Mateo and also Councilmember Carroll. So we have a bare
quorum today and I apologize. From the Administration, we have with us today, Mr. John Buck, who's
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Deputy Director of Parks, Mr. Pat Matsui of Parks, and we also have Mr. Kim from Corporation
Counsel. We have with us from Council staff, Ms. Pauline Martins and Shelly Espeleta. Is there anyone
else present? I guess we have, in the audience, Mr. Kalbert Young from Finance, and also Mr. Bob
Straub from Parks. So thank you, members. We have only one request at this point for testimony and
we have two committee items on our agenda today, and that is a request from Mr. David Dom to give
testimony but it has been communicated to me--oh, and please tum off all cell phones and pagers, if you
would. It has been communicated to me by Mr. Dom that he would like to see the presentation prior to
his giving any testimony. Is there anyone in the audience who wishes to testify prior to the presentation
of our first item, which is Parks and Economic Development No. 10? Seeing no one come forward at
this point in time, I will read the item.

PED-lO

OCEAN RECREATIONAL ACTIVITY PERMITS (ORAP)

(C.c. No. 04-143)

CHAIR JOHNSON: PED-I0 regards ocean recreational activity permits, which is better known as ORAP. The
committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 04-143, from Councilmember Johnson, relating
to possible revisions to Ordinance No. 3143, establishing Article X, Chapter 13.04, Maui County Code,
entitled "COMMERCIAL OCEAN RECREATIONAL ACTIVITY". Today's status is that we are
going to receive a presentation on the "Ocean Recreation Activity Implementation Program Study" by
Munekiyo & Hiraga, so we thank them for participating. We have, doing the presentation, Ms. Karlynn
Kawahara. We also have a representative in the audience ... uh ... two representatives: Mr. Mark Roy
and Michael Munekiyo from Munekiyo & Hiraga, who will also be assisting with any additional
questions. So since there are no members from the public coming forward to testify, at this point, I will
reserve testimony on this one item following the presentation of the study. So without further adieu,
Ms. Kawahara, if you would be kind enough to go through the presentation and Ms. Tavares is gonna
take care of the lights for us.
MS. KAWAHARA: Okay.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much.
MS. KAWAHARA: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: (NOTE: Councilmember Tavares dimmed the lights.) Just a little bit. Is that okay?
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Do you have any opening comments, Mr. Buck, prior to the presentation? I
should offer you at least that opportunity.
MR. BUCK: Thank you, Madam Chair. I think, as part of the agenda item, I think the presentation will be
pretty self-explanatory what is being done in compliance of the conditions of the ORAP when it was
passed a couple years ago.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much. Karlynn, thank you for being with us.
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.. . BEGIN PRESENTATION . ..

MS. KAWAHARA: Sure. Good afternoon, Chair Johnson and Members of the Parks and Economic
Development Committee. My name is Karlynn Kawahara and I am a planner with the firm of Munekiyo
& Hiraga, Inc. We are the consultants who were hired by the Department of Parks and Recreation to
prepare the report regarding the commercial ocean recreational activity program or CORA at the County
beach parks in relation to Ordinance No. 3143. Joining me today are Michael Munekiyo and Mark Roy
also from our firm. We have a short PowerPoint presentation for you today regarding the CORA study.
As I'm sure you are aware, the Council adopted Ordinance No. 3143 in 2003, which established the
framework for managing CORA operations on County property, including both County beach parks and
beach accesses. The purpose of Ordinance No. 3143 is noted as "to fairly and effectively regulate
CORA to ensure that County beach parks and other County property are utilized for the community's
maximum recreational, environmental, and economic benefit." The ordinance defined CORA as an
ocean recreational activity conducted by a business for a patron in or on County beach park or other
County property.
(NOTE: Mr. Buck turned the lights completely off)

CHAIR JOHNSON: Can you see, Karlynn?
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Can you see, Karlynn?
MS. KAWAHARA: Not really.. ,. (chuckled) . ..
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Yeah, that's the problem.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh! John, Karlynn can't see.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Just tum one ofthe lights on.
MS. KAWAHARA: I'll just read off the screen.... (chuckled) ...
CHAIR JOHNSON: Technical difficulties .... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Madam Chair, is there a hardcopy of this that we can follow with?
CHAIR JOHNSON: Karlynn, do you have a hardcopy to distribute also?
MS. KAWAHARA: Yes. I believe copies were passed out to the members.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
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MS. KAWAHARA: Okay.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: The lighting is not set up for that.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Karlynn, staff-MS. KAWAHARA: Oh, yeah.
CHAIR JOHNSON: --has a light available for you.
MS. KAWAHARA: Sure. That will work.
CHAIR JOHNSON: With your indulgence, Mr. Buck, if we could please have the lights turned down again.
. . . (chuckled) ... Thank you.
MS. KAWAHARA: Yeah, this works. Okay. Ordinance No. 3143 gave the Department of Parks and
Recreation the responsibility for the implementation of the CORA program, transferring it from the
Department of Finance. The purpose of the CORA study is to provide planning data needed for
development of rules, which will govern the CORA operations. The CORA study was specifically
outlined in the ordinance for the implementation of the rules. The goal of the study is to ensure that the
data collection and analysis process is appropriately integrated with a sound stakeholder and public input
process. There were four objectives identified for the CORA study. First, to utilize multi-pronged data
collection techniques, which included: beach park assessments, interviews, and focus group meetings.
Secondly, to the extent practical, utilize the knowledge base of the CORA operators in assessing the
beach park operational parameters. Third, to develop and prepare working papers for review by both the
stakeholders and the public. And finally, to establish an open and ongoing process for receiving
stakeholder and public comments. There were 17 beach parks selected by the Department of Parks and
Recreation to be included in the study. There are currently 29 County beach parks where ocean
recreational activity permits or ORAP are issued. While the deciding factor in the number of parks that
were ultimately selected for the study was financial, it is our goal to provide the Department of Parks
and Recreation with the standard framework for analysis of the beach parks, which could be utilized at a
later date to analyze the remaining beach parks for CORA activities. Further, it is our understanding that
the Department of Parks and Recreation has no intention of closing the beach parks that were not
included in the study to CORA activities. This is a tentative time schedule that we created for the CORA
study and I have included a full-sized version of the chart in the packets that you've received. We have
met the study goals for April and May and are on target for the June activities. In fact, based on
feedback we received at a meeting with the CORA operators, the focus group meetings that were
scheduled for June actually took place in May. Our goal is to have the draft rules and our CORA study
completed by the end of September 2005.
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Briefly, I would like to provide you with a summary of the working papers that we have either
completed or are in process.
•

Working Paper No.1: this paper covered the study background and methodology. A draft of the
report was reviewed by the CORA operators and is being finalized for Chapter I of the final
CORA report.

•

Working Paper No.2: this paper covered the results of the survey that was sent out to the
57 permitted CORA operators. A meeting will be held at the end of this month to have the
operators review the draft report and receive their comments.

•

Working Paper No.3: this paper is in progress and will contain the beach park assessments for
the 17 selected beach parks. Beach parks have been grouped by community plan area and will
provide general observations of conditions by community plan region as well as an individual
beach park assessment. The beach park analysis covers a wide range of topics from drainage and
topography to facilities and surrounding land uses.

•

Working Paper No.4: this paper will provide an analysis of the field observations at the beach
parks and a summary of comments received from the CORA focus group meetings. Field
observations at the County beach parks provided a picture of both CORA and non-CORA
activities at the County beach parks. Field observations were conducted independently of the
beach park analysis and were completed by separate staff. The purpose of the field observations
was to record activities and note issues and conflicts (if any) at the respective beach parks. Visits
were conducted on various days of the week, including weekends, and at various times from
early morning to afternoon. It is understood that the field observations represent a point in time
for the beach park and that weather conditions will affect both CORA operations and general
public use of the beach parks. Additionally, summaries of the comments provided by CORA
operators in focus group meetings, which were held in May 2005 will be covered in Working
Paper No.4. Input was sought from the CORA operators to gain their perspective on the benefits
and challenges of conducting CORA operations at County beach parks as well as any
recommendations they had to improve the CORA program overall. Based on the findings from
the field observations and focus groups, Working Paper No.4 will provide proposed
recommendations for rules, revisions, or improvements at the individual beach parks.

Final report preparation will include each previous working paper as a chapter in the report. A draft of
the rules will be prepared based on the study findings and results. A copy of the draft rules will also be
included in the final report.
Lastly, we wanted to summarize the meetings that have been held thus far with the CORA operators.
•

Our first informational meeting was held on March 1st of this year.
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•

A follow-up meeting was held in April of 2005 to review the draft of Working Paper No.1,
which covers study methodology.

•

In May of 2005, we held six focus group sessions and this was done, not by beach park, but by
activity, based on comments that we received from the CORA operators.

•

Again, as I previously mentioned, we have recently scheduled a meeting on June 28 of this year
to review the draft of Working Paper No.2, which covers the CORA survey results.

•

And lastly, we will be planning additional meetings to review drafts of the Working Paper Nos. 3
and 4 in August of2005. That's our target right now.

We thank you for your time and are available to answer any questions you may have. Thank you .

. . . END OF PRESENTATION . ..

CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Karlynn. Before we begin our questions of you, Karlynn, what I
would like to do is offer Mr. Dom his opportunity to testify on this particular subject. So Mr. Dom if
you could please come forward and ... uh ... come to podium, state your name for the record, and then
give your testimony.

. .. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
MR. DORN: Hello, my name is David Dom. I'm an ORAP holder and a CORA operator and I'm here to
testify a little bit. It's a shame that more of my colleagues aren't here today but they have ... several of
them have expressed that they are just flat out busy. I can relay some of the information to them and
... uh ... I have a general consensus on some of the feelings on certain issues. I would just like to say
from the outset that this CORA study seems to be going in the right direction and obviously, it has
plenty of opportunity for the input from the operators, which is a wonderful thing. It's a good feeling to
have a voice in the process and I really think that we're gonna make a difference. This has been a
process that's been in cooperation for some period of time and I think we're finally getting there. The
last time I testified I had some feedback that perhaps, you know, I put the Parks Department on the back
foot, like I perhaps was making them feel attacked ... uh ... in response, particularly, to we're talking
about the enforcement and giving the Parks some teeth to enforce the regulations. It's not my intention
to ... um ... take any of the power away from the Parks Department to enforce their rules but our initial
reaction--and speaking to my colleagues and myself--was that the enforcement would have been
premature at that time and without any safeguards, we couldn't support it in its current form. But I
would just like to say, having reflected on that since my last thing, I would want the Parks Department
to know that in theory we support it if there were some safeguards put in place like a third-strike rule or
I don't know how it would have to be implemented to comply with the legal conditions, it could be
something we could get behind more. I don't think we're that far apart on the issue. Enforcement's
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obviously something we've requested and the Parks are trying to implement, where there are distinctly,
there are reservations in our industry that we will be ... could be exposed when it comes to maybe
overzealous enforcement. A couple of examples we've had in the past, especially the longer term
operators, some of 15 years. We've had people enforcing rules that nobody was sure about and
... uh ... if we had some assurances of safeguards, it could be something we could get behind.
This week, we will be meeting with the kite school owners. We are discussing issues of self-regulation.
I know that when we've been submitting to the CORA study, we might have been vague on what our
self-regulation is. I will be getting together with all of the school owners or getting feedback on them on
... uh ... what our position is, whether we want to have a degree of self-determination self-regulation
within our industry. We have, you know, as I mentioned before, three associations. I know that there
are people in both camps and we just have to discuss that and see ... um ... what we want to put
forward. I think, in addition, the windsurfing schools, they are pretty much on the same page. I'm also
a member of the windsurfing schools, the Maui Board Sailing Association, which have had long-term
rules in existence, some of which have become Hawaii Revised Statutes with the operations in the swim
zones at Kanaha Beach park. They've become law and that helps with the self-regulation on that point
of view. There are some other self-regulation guidelines and gentlemen's agreements that we abide by,
which makes it a lot more user friendly down at the beach for the public and what have you. However, I
think there's a feeling amongst our industry to wait and see what the CORA study recommends. So
we're not ... um ... we're waiting to see what their perhaps limitations or the administrative rules are,
so we decide what further concessions we'll make because there's a real danger for us because we're
basically operating on a pretty thin line there for making our businesses viable. If for instance, days off,
vacations, public holidays, which ones are recognized? If it's the State, or if it's the County, or both
combined, that would make a real difference to the viability of our businesses. So before we offer it up
(our concessions), it would be kind of nice to know what the limitations that are going to be demanded
from us in the administrative rules would be. So we are moving in the same direction but it's kind of a,
you know, wait to see who makes the first move. That's my general observation. I'm not speaking for
everybody but that is what I get from speaking to people. Being regulated out of existence is the biggest
fear of the majority of CORA operators that I have spoken to. Some are part of the process. Some are
anti- any regulation and some are all behind it. Some are just ... let the County take care of it all. I
think it needs constructive input from us and, you know, that's why I'm here.
This week, we received the instructions for the Parks permits for existing permit holders, a day or so
ago. I have a question for the Parks Department, that maybe they could ... if it comes up, it would be
good to know. Everything seems pretty basic, just a repeat of what we had under the Finance
Department. There is an additional thing in there, which I think is good in theory, the certification of
life-guarding certification is in there. I spoke to other people and said "how do you read this; is it ... ?"
They said "oh, you just need either CPR or First Aid from the lifeguards or another recognized body".
You know, I didn't read it like that. I read it as we needed full lifeguard certification for all our
instructors plus the CPR and First Aid. So if it is the life-guarding thing, we've got what, you know,
12 days to comply or something like that? So if that is the case, I would support it. It's a wonderful
idea. We are really utilizing the resource of instructors as quasi-lifeguards. In fact, they will be
lifeguards as far as their training is concerned. However, I know there are going to be a lot of people--if
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that is the case--that are gonna be stalled off the blocks. They will need a grace period, perhaps, to get
that full certification. I don't know if you've ever dealt with the Red Cross but Tweet down at the Red
Cross there, but scheduling a lifeguard course, I've been on the waiting list for six months. I will put all
of my current (seven) instructors through that program before the end of the month if it's possible but if
it is actually a new condition, then perhaps a grace period would help us out, but I actually think it's a
wonderful idea. More training is better. That's it.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you, David. Do the members have any questions of Mr. Dorn? Thanks very much
for giving your testimony and we'll try to get an answer. If not during this meeting, we'll try and get an
answer after. Are there any other individuals in the audience who wish to testify on either subject that's
on our agenda today (Parks and Economic Development No. 10 or Parks and Economic Development
No. 11)? Seeing no one coming forward at this time, public testimony will be closed if there's no
objection.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: No objection.
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.
MR. BUCK: Madam Chair?
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.
MR. BUCK: I have an answer to what Mr. Dorn's concern was.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Ifit's appropriate, you know, if you want to put that on the record.
MR. BUCK: I would like to put it on the record.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.
MR. BUCK: Basically, what the new condition is--and hopefully it's something that the dealing with tourists
and the risks involved, that all we are asking for is--not the life-guarding but it's the CPR and the First
Aid. And usually a life-guarding class does cover that, so that's why that statement's in there. So it's
the CPR and the First Aid is what it should be and not the life-guarding class, if I can clarify that.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, okay. Thank you very much. And hopefully, that answered Mr. Dorn's question. And
I do think, though, that when you are drafting the administrative rules too, which is all part of the input
here, that it's gonna be really important to be real clear and then if there are additional things that need
to be added in, such as, the certification, which Mr. Dorn mentioned, I think that would be helpful.
Members, do we have questions ofKarlynn or any other representatives with regard to the study or
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anything that you saw in the presentation that you need further clarification on? Councilmember
Tavares.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Not further clarification, but I would just like to thank Karlynn for giving us a
status report of where they are in the process and what exactly the methodology is that is being used and
what kind of reports we can expect. Normally, when we have these kinds of studies or reports required
or contracted for, you know, we approve the money and the next thing, we see the report. We have no
idea what happened in between here and there and then we get antsy when it takes a long time, so I
would just like to share, I think, the whole committee's appreciation for the work that you've done on
this. Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: And the Chair also wishes to thank Karlynn. Actually, our staff thought it would be
helpful for all of us because if there are certain elements or components that, at this point in time, we
would even like to inject and ask questions about that perhaps had not been thought about or, you know,
well it has to stay within the parameters of the study. I think that sometimes taking into consideration
our approach or maybe how we might address particular issues, I really welcome that and I thank staff
for that suggestion too because I think that I would like to know what the progress is that's coming on
and I think it's really helpful to know that these are ongoing meetings and what comes out at the end
hopefully will be something that's a useful tool for all of us. And particularly, because there has been
oftentimes criticism of government not including the stakeholders and, you know, just developing
ordinances and isolation, I think this is particularly good for this to have come forward. Councilmember
Anderson, do you have any questions or anything at this point? Karlynn, my only question would be
that when you're going forward with this, will you be actually drafting then? From my understanding,
you would be drafting in cooperation with Parks Department and the public as well as the operators, the
administrative rules, which--will you be actually taking those out and assisting our Department (our
Administration) with taking those out to public testimony?
MS. KAWAHARA: Yes. I believe that is the goal of ... urn ... I guess, that is the end product of our study, is
to create a draft set of rules and assist the Parks Department in their public hearing.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Great. Great. I think that's wonderful. Is there anything further members? Is there
anything additional that you wish to add, Karlynn?
MS. KAWAHARA: No. Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you. Mike, any comments? Seeing none. I really appreciate the
presentation and I want to thank you for keeping us updated and so if there's no objection, members, of
course, this item--because it will eventually come back to us--the item will be deferred.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (PRESENT: ANDERSON, JOHNSON, AND
TAVARES)
ACTION:

DEFER.

CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much. And thank you for the presentation. Would stafflike just a
brief recess to take away the equipment? Okay, about a two-minute recess.

RECESS:

1 :58 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:03 p.m.

CHAIR JOHNSON: The Parks and Economic Development Committee meeting for June 16,2005 will come
back into order. Just prior to the recess, we had concluded the PED-l 0 but Mr. Buck had a brief
comment that he also wanted to put on the record.
MR. BUCK: Yeah. I just want to put on the record that when these working papers that we're working on get
posted on the County website under the Parks Department. The Working Paper No.2 that she's talking
about is currently on the website.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Great. Thank you. He just wanted that to go on the record so that we know that we're
being as open and transparent as we can to the public, so that there's no miscommunication.

PED-ll

SEMIANNUAL REPORT REGARDING PARK DEDICATIONS (C.C. No. 05-206)

CHAIR JOHNSON: Members, our final item is Parks and Economic Development No. 11, which is the
semiannual report regarding park dedications. The Committee is in receipt of County Communication
No. 05-206 from Councilmember Charmaine Tavares, transmitting a proposed bill, entitled "A BILL
FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 18.16.320, MAUl COUNTY CODE, AS IT
PERTAINS TO THE SEMIANNUAL REPORT REGARDING PARK DEDICATIONS". The purpose
of the proposed bill is to revise the required elements of the semiannual report on park dedications. And
at this point, I will tum the issue over to Councilmember Tavares.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Hi, Madam Chair. You may go for a record meeting this afternoon because
... uh ... I'm almost hesitant to say that this is a no-brainer but ... urn ... as promised, in an earlier
Parks meeting, I volunteered to take this on to fix it up, to just further clarify that the report that comes
to the County Council actually contains not just money, land, and improvement, but any combination of
those groups. Thank you to Mr. Kim, who has worded it in a way that I think is quite clear. I also want
to thank David Raatz from our staff for helping to work on this. What seemed to be a really simple
thing to do ended up being a little more involved but I think what we have here is a product where it's
clear, first of all, that the report is transmitted to the Council, which was not stated earlier; and that
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secondly and most important, that it would also require a reporting of combinations of cash, land, and/or
improvements.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: And anytime you are ready for a motion, Madam Chair, I am happy to make it.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Are there any items, Mr. Kim, anything that you want to go over specifically with
regard to the bill? It's pretty much self-explanatory.
MR. KIM: Yes, ma'am.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much. Councilmember Anderson, did you have anything?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Members, at this point, the Chair will entertain a motion to pass the bill for an
ordinance amending Section 18.16.320, Maui County Code, as it pertains to the semiannual report
regarding park dedications and the filing of County Communication No. 05-206.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Madam Chairman, so moved.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Second.
CHAIR JOHNSON: It's been moved by Councilmember Tavares and seconded by Councilmember Anderson.
Is there any discussion on the item?
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: No discussion, unless there's a question someone wants to ask.
CHAIR JOHNSON: The Chair has no questions and I thank you for bringing this forward, as promised, for
clarification. Seeing that there's no discussion, all those in favor of the measure, please signify by
saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmember Anderson, Vice-Chair Tavares, and Chair
Johnson.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Mateo and Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FIRST READING AND FILING OF COMMUNICATION.

CHAIR JOHNSON: And of course, the Chair votes "aye" so it's unanimous.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I would have liked an opportunity to say something but _ __
I guess.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And we'll be done with it.
CHAIR JOHNSON: I'm sorry. I thought that there was no discussion.

Would you like to reconsider the item?

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Yes, please.
CHAIR JOHNSON: It is the Chair's recommendation, at this point, that we reconsider this particular item. So
I'll make a motion for reconsideration.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: So moved.
CHAIR JOHNSON: So it's been moved by Councilmember Tavares. May I have a second?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Second.
CHAIR JOHNSON: So it's been seconded. All those in favor, please signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmember Anderson, Vice-Chair Tavares, and Chair
Johnson.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Mateo and Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

RECONSIDERATION.

CHAIR JOHNSON: So the motion is being reconsidered. Now--excuse me--Councilmember Anderson, you
may proceed.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Ijust wanted to thank Charmaine for doing this. I think that the ordinance
as it read was a little weak and this puts some teeth in it and actually some good directives. So I thank
her for doing that. It's improving it quite a bit.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Is there anything further to, is there anything--I noticed that we have Aquatics
in the audience .... (chuckled) ... Was there any comment with regard to this particular report?
MR. BUCK: She's late for the other one.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, she was here for the other one. So you're late for PED-IO.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Madam Chairman.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes?
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Yes, Madam Chairman. I believe that now there's no motion on the floor.
CHAIR JOHNSON: There's no motion. So we are going to entertain a motion, again.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. You can go ahead and read it. ... (chuckled) ...
CHAIR JOHNSON: I know. I will read it back into the record. And I apologize, you know, sometimes, I get
moving a little bit fast on these things. So anyway, at this time, the Chair would entertain a motion that
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we transmit the bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 18.16.320,
MAUl COUNTY CODE, AS IT PERTAINS TO THE SEMIANNUAL REPORT REGARDING PARK
DEDICATIONS" and including the filing of this communication.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: I so move, Madam Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Second.
CHAIR JOHNSON: So it's been moved by Councilmember Tavares and seconded by Councilmember
Anderson. Is there any additional discussion?
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Oh, Madam--ifI may, Madam Chair?
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: As the maker of the motion, I want to thank you, Michelle, for your comments. It
was something that we had discussed in committee and I think the members were in agreement that it
needed some clarification. I don't remember ifit was last term? I guess it was last term.
CHAIR JOHNSON: It was last term.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Yeah. So it was last term and, you know, I stuck my hand in the air, I guess, at that
time and said "oh, I'll remember to take care of it". And then I couldn't find the paper that I wrote all
my notes to myself about things I said I was gonna do. Then I found it. ... (chuckled) ... So, I got to
it. But I want to thank the members for the discussion in last term and also from the Parks Department,
which led us to clarifying it further, so it's real clear. No matter who's in the Parks Department or who's
in ... uh ... sitting in the Council at that time, that it is very clear where this report goes and what shall
it contain. So I thank everyone who worked on it. It was really a joint effort with the last Council and
this Council.
CHAIR JOHNSON: And I thank you too because I know sometimes these seem like little small things but the
institutional memory goes on once certain people go off the Council. And unfortunately, then the laws
are left in a very vague state and sometimes, that's where the loopholes are created. So I think it's really
important to have that in place. So I want to thank the members and I also want to thank staff for their
participation today, the members of the Administration and Parks, and of course, Corporation Counsel. I
especially want to thank the members. Even though these may not seem like pressing issues that we had
on our agenda today, I do want to thank the members, who ... um ... you know, stuck with this and
didn't go on to other things because sometimes, it is really hard to get everyone together at the same
point in time. But I want to thank those individuals too that always come from the public to bring their
testimony forward as well. So is there any other announcements? Or is there any further business?
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Let's vote on it.
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CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, I'm sorry. I didn't even take the vote on that. That would have been inappropriate .
. . . (chuckled) ... So I get distracted on my own accord. So are there any other comments? Seeing
none. All those in favor, please signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
AYES:

Councilmember Anderson, Vice-Chair Tavares, and Chair
Johnson.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

VOTE:

EXC.:

Councilmembers Mateo and Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FIRST READING AND FILING OF COMMUNICATION.

CHAIR JOHNSON: And the Chair votes "aye" so it's unanimous.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Thank goodness.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much for attending this meeting. Is there any other further business or
any other announcements? Nothing from staff? Thank you very much. And with that, this meeting is
adjourned.
ADJOURN: 2:11 p.m.

APPROVED BY:

Transcribed by: Pauline Martins
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